## Fragments of Chaos: The Theatre of Parties and the Silence of the People

# FRAGMENTS OF CHAOS

THE THEATRE OF PARTIES
AND THE SILENCE
OF THE PEOPLE

FRANCISCO GONÇALVES

#### **Table of Contents**

- 1. Preface From Silence to Word
- 2. Chapter 1 The Marketplace of Votes
- 3. Chapter 2 The Party Machine
- 4. Chapter 3 The Death of Representation
- 5. Chapter 4 The People Held Hostage
- 6. Chapter 5 Partidocracy: When Parties Usurp the Republic
- 7. Chapter 6 The Tax of Lies
- 8. Chapter 7 Politics as a Lifelong Career
- 9. Chapter 8 Youth on the Road to Exile
- 10. **Chapter 9 Old Without Voice, Young Without Future**
- 11. Chapter 10 The Captive Media
- 12. Chapter 11 The Vote of Fear, the Absence of Hope
- 13. **Chapter 12 The Icelandic Dream**
- 14. Chapter 13 Refounding the Republic
- 15. **Chapter 14 From Vote to Action**
- 16. **Chapter 15 Civic Movements: The Other Politics**
- 17. Chapter 16 Direct Democracy and Technology
- 18. **Epilogue The Indomitable Seed**

#### **Preface - From Silence to Word**

These pages are born from unrest.

From a country where hope slowly drains, suffocated by structures that serve only themselves.

This book is a serene outcry.

A proposal to look.

An attempt at liberation.

A political gesture without flags — only soul.

It is not a manifesto.

It is not a campaign.

It is a mirror — cracked, perhaps — but reflecting a truth many refuse to see.

What lies here is not hatred, but clarity.

Not nostalgia, but a lucid yearning.

Not division, but the search for a path.

Because before any change, there must be a word.

Before any act, there must be awareness.

Before any dawn, there is always the chaos of the night.

#### **Chapter 1 - The Marketplace of Votes**

#### **Chapter 1 - The Marketplace of Votes**

There exists a place where democracy is converted into business.

Where each civic gesture — the vote — is translated into hard currency.

That place is not some distant dystopia.

It is Portugal, in the 21st century.

For every vote a party obtains in legislative elections, the State grants it approximately €3.48 per year, for four years.

A seemingly modest amount — until we multiply it by hundreds of thousands or millions of votes.

The result is a constant flow of **millions of euros annually**, handed to parties represented in Parliament.

The subsidy is automatic. Blind. Regular.

Parties don't need to show efficiency, ethics, commitment, or results.

They just need to capture the electorate's attention (or despair) for a few minutes every four years.

After that, they collect. Every month. On time.

Like a lifetime allowance.

Disguised under the noble argument of "guaranteeing party independence from private interests," this system created a new kind of dependency:

the dependency of parties on the State — and, by extension, the control of the State by the parties.

Most parties have become structures of electoral profitability.

Campaigns are no longer about ideas — they are about optimizing vote return.

It is not the cause, the vision, or the project that drives the leaders — it is the maintenance of financing.

The cycle is perverse:

- 1. A party builds an emotional narrative;
- 2. Captures votes en masse:
- 3. Receives millions from the State;
- 4. Strengthens itself as a machine;
- 5. Uses public resources to perpetuate itself and neutralize competition.

And the small ones?

New parties that don't reach 50,000 votes are excluded from the subsidy.

They are pushed to the margins, even if they bring new ideas and sincere mobilization.

The system rewards the established and smothers the emergent. It is the consecration of stagnation.

The most tragic part?

#### All of this is legal. Constitutional. Normalized.

Most citizens are unaware.

They vote with hope or resignation, but rarely with full awareness that each vote is also a **public wealth transfer to private electoral machines**.

The vote — the symbol of sovereignty — has been transformed into an accounting asset.

A negotiable value.

A token in an institutionalized market.

The **Marketplace of Votes** is open 365 days a year.

And it is the people who foot the bill.

#### **Chapter 2 - The Party Machine**

If there is one entity more resistant to change than the Portuguese State, it is the Portuguese political party.

Born from promises of representation, it has, over the decades, become a self-preserving organism — a machine whose priority is not to serve the people, but to **ensure its own survival.** 

On the surface, everything appears democratic: congresses, votes, elected leaderships.

But behind the curtain lies a well-oiled apparatus, governed by internal logic, immune to external scrutiny, where power circulates through corridors, favors, and loyalties.

A political party in Portugal often resembles a disguised corporation. It has offices, communications departments, marketing teams, human resources, funding streams, hierarchies.

But unlike a real company, it does not survive by delivering results or earning the trust of its "clients."

#### It survives on public subsidies.

On the occupation of the State.

And above all, on itself.

Its primary function is no longer to **mediate between society and power**, but to **colonize the State from within**.

Appointments, advisory positions, boards, commissions — all become tokens in a game of influence.

Meritocracy is replaced by militancy.

The party becomes a gatekeeper, deciding who advances, who stalls, who is expelled.

Any dissent is punished.

Any independent thought is neutralized.

Those who question too much are excluded from the inner circles — or never even make it onto the lists.

#### This is not democracy.

It is a closed-circuit of self-replication.

A caste system dressed up in electoral clothing.

Inside the machine, the goal is not justice or reform — it is **maintenance**. Maintaining power.

Maintaining image. Maintaining privilege.

And the citizens?

They're spectators — occasionally invited to applaud during elections, then sent back into silence.

The Party Machine does not tolerate interruption. It feeds on inertia.

And it thrives in the absence of outrage.

#### **Chapter 3 - The Death of Representation**

Representative democracy was born of a noble ideal: to entrust elected citizens with the mandate to act in the name of the people.

It was a delegation of hope.

A bridge between dispersed wills and concrete governance.

But that bridge has collapsed.

Today, the elected no longer represent the voters.

They represent the **party structures** that put them on the lists.

They owe their loyalty not to the people — but to the machine.

The vote has become a blank check.

And the deputies, mere cogs in a blind mechanism.

They sit in Parliament not to think, not to deliberate, but to follow instructions from above.

They press buttons, read prepared speeches, and raise hands on cue.

There is no accountability.

No listening.

No consequence.

Citizens write to their representatives and receive silence in return.

They demand transparency and get opacity.

They ask for coherence and are given marketing.

Representation has died.

And few noticed the funeral.

What remains is a theatre — with audience, stage, and costumes.

But the script is written in advance.

And the people's voice was cut from the final draft.

We live in a country with full formal democracy — but hollow spiritual democracy.

There are elections, but no real link.

There are institutions, but no connection.

The citizen is a spectator.

And democracy, a theatre where the people no longer speak.

#### **Chapter 4 - The People Held Hostage**

We live in a land where the people vote, pay, and remain silent.

Where citizenship has been reduced to two acts: paying taxes and casting a ballot every four years.

The rest is obedience, survival, and resignation.

The Portuguese people, noble in essence, have been taken hostage by a political system that neither listens nor serves.

They are blamed when they protest.

Mocked when they abstain.

Punished when they dare to dream.

They are called lazy, ignorant, ungrateful.

But it was not them who built a tax labyrinth.

It was not them who destroyed the trust in public services.

It was not them who created a bureaucracy that crushes initiative.

It was the parties.

The machine.

The permanent structure of interest that calls itself "the State."

Meanwhile, the people are left with what is left:

- A crumbling National Health Service.
- A justice system where processes die before they are judged.
- A school system that ranks at the bottom in Europe.
- A transport network from the last century.
- Wages that insult dignity.
- Rents that devour entire salaries.

And despite all this, the people continue to work, to raise their children, to help their elders.

They continue to believe that perhaps tomorrow might be better.

They cling to small joys, to modest victories.

But the system does not reward that resilience.

Instead, it exploits it.

It takes the people's silence as consent. Their patience as weakness. Their humility as an invitation to abuse.

This is not a Republic. It is a hostage situation.

And no people deserves to live indefinitely as prisoner of a mechanism that feeds on their fatigue.

### **Chapter 5 - Partidocracy: When Parties Usurp the Republic**

The Constitution proclaims: "Political power belongs to the people." But in practice, the ones who exercise it — almost absolutely — are the **parties**.

Parties that were born to organize representation and pluralism, have become **closed structures**, **self-referential**, and **detached from society**.

They are no longer intermediaries between the people and power. They have **become power** itself.

They occupy every layer of the State: from local councils to national assemblies, from regulatory agencies to public companies.

They distribute appointments, favors, contracts.

They build invisible empires of influence, held not by merit, but by allegiance.

This is not democracy — it is **partidocracy**.

A regime where the **party comes before the citizen**.

Where political careers are more important than public service.

Where loyalty to the leader outweighs the truth.

The public sphere is invaded by partisan logics.

Debate becomes spectacle.

Opposition is not constructive — it is merely the role of "the other team." Politics becomes a game, and the people, spectators who foot the bill.

Institutions are captured.

Laws are made to preserve power, not to serve justice.

Budgets are negotiated in dark rooms, with favors traded like cards.

Media are co-opted. Dissent is ignored or ridiculed.

What was supposed to be a Republic — a common thing, belonging to all — has become the **private property of parties**.

The tragedy is that many believe this is "normal."

That democracy works like this.

That one must choose "the lesser evil" and bear it.

But no Republic survives long when political parties replace the people as sovereign.

And no future can be born while the present is hostage to a machinery whose only goal is **its own perpetuation**.

#### **Chapter 6 - The Tax of Lies**

There is no tax more silent — nor more cruel — than the one levied on **hope**.

In Portugal, the political lie has become a **governance instrument**.

It is not the exception. It is the method.

It is not a slip. It is a strategy.

Campaigns are built on illusions.

Budgets are crafted with manipulated numbers.

Promises are made with expiration dates known only to those who make them.

Truth has become negotiable.

Data is massaged.

Reality is distorted in press conferences, television debates, and carefully crafted tweets.

But each lie has a cost.

And the one who pays... is the citizen.

The lie steals confidence in the future.

It weakens trust in institutions.

It corrodes the social fabric.

It generates cynicism, detachment, abstention.

The lie is not harmless.

It is a **form of theft** — of dignity, clarity, and the possibility of building something lasting.

When a people no longer believes in those who govern them, democracy enters **a twilight zone**.

When words lose meaning, dialogue becomes noise.

When promises are no longer binding, politics becomes mere theatre.

And yet, no politician is held accountable for their lies.

There are no trials for deception.

There is no court of honesty.

Only the ballot box — every four years — where voters, dazed and discouraged, choose between names they no longer trust.

In the meantime, the system continues.

It feeds on inertia.

And every new lie becomes a new tax — paid in silence, confusion, and loss of collective energy.

#### **Chapter 7 - Politics as a Lifelong Career**

Politics, by its very essence, should be a public service.

A temporary act of dedication to the collective good.

A calling to contribute, then return to life among the people.

But in Portugal, politics has become a lifelong career.

A profession with no expiry date, no evaluation, no accountability.

We see the same faces, decade after decade.

Old banners wrapped in new slogans.

Leaders who never leave — only rotate.

A revolving door of power that closes tightly behind those on the inside.

For many, entering a party is not about ideas or causes.

It is a career plan.

They begin in the youth wings.

They rise through internal bureaucracy.

They learn to applaud when needed, to be silent when told, and to climb without shaking the foundations.

They do not study to govern — they train to survive.

They do not debate to enlighten — they speak to maintain position.

They do not challenge — they adapt.

And once they reach office, they fear only one thing: losing it.

They legislate to secure themselves.

They negotiate for visibility.

They promise to postpone consequences.

The State becomes a stage.

Society becomes a backdrop.

The people, an inconvenience.

Meanwhile, professionals in other fields — teachers, doctors, engineers, scientists — come and go with their skills, often abroad.

But the political class remains.

Stagnant.

Perpetuated.

Insulated.

A Republic cannot renew itself with a class that refuses to leave. A democracy cannot breathe if those in power do not know what it means to live outside it.

Until politics becomes again **a mission**, **not a profession**, the future will remain in the hands of those most afraid of change.

#### **Chapter 8 - Youth on the Road to Exile**

Portugal is today a country that educates its best... only to export them.

Our youth speak multiple languages.

They are highly qualified.

They master technologies, sciences, arts.

They dream of building, creating, innovating.

But when they look around, they find:

- Salaries that do not match the cost of living;
- Rent that devours more than half of their income;
- Internships disguised as eternal precariousness;
- Public services that suffocate more than they support.

And so they leave.

Not because they want to abandon the country.

But because the country abandoned them.

They go to Germany, the Netherlands, Canada, Australia.

They become doctors, programmers, engineers, researchers — far from the soil that raised them.

Each departure is a silent failure.

A broken promise of a nation that swore to give them wings but clipped them at the roots.

The most dramatic?

It's not just a "brain drain" — it's a **soul drain**.

They take with them dreams, families not formed, children not born, ideas not tested here.

Entire generations grow old without their grandchildren nearby.

Communities lose future leaders, artists, thinkers.

The government counts them as "Portuguese abroad," as if that were a merit.

But they are **Portuguese expelled by neglect**.

And many of those who stay survive between precarious jobs, emotional burnout, and the ever-present question:

"Why should I fight for a country that doesn't fight for me?"

A nation that cannot embrace its youth is a nation slowly erasing its future. It becomes a museum of memories and regrets.

And a waiting room for the next departure.

#### **Chapter 9 - Old Without Voice, Young Without Future**

Portugal has become a country where the elderly live forgotten, and the young depart disillusioned.

The generation that built bridges, roads, schools, and cities now survives on pensions that barely allow for bread and medicine.

They sit in health center waiting rooms for hours.

They queue at ATMs to withdraw what little remains.

They live alone, often invisible to a society that sees them as weight, not wisdom.

Meanwhile, the young live in a suspended reality:

Graduates without jobs.

Workers without contracts.

Adults without the means to become independent.

The old are not heard.

The young are not allowed to act.

And between both — a political class that **neither listens nor empowers**.

Elderly wisdom is discarded.

Youthful creativity is ignored.

Experience and innovation are left to rot in bureaucratic drawers and hollow slogans.

The result?

A country with a **fading memory** and a **postponed tomorrow**.

While the old suffer in silence, and the young wait for a miracle, the system remains unchanged — because that's how it was designed:

To **preserve itself**, not to serve.

There is no intergenerational pact.

Only mutual frustration.

The elderly die slowly in homes that feel like warehouses.

The young survive restlessly, renting futures by the month.

But a society that loses its past and exiles its future is a society on the verge of collapse.

#### **Chapter 10 - The Captive Media**

In a country where freedom of the press is formally guaranteed, the truth has increasingly become a matter of ownership and editorial alignment.

Portuguese media outlets live trapped between:

- Political influence,
- Economic dependence,
- Audience algorithms.

Journalistic independence has become a slogan — not a reality.

Large media groups are controlled by economic interests with close ties to political power.

What is said — and above all, what is **not** said — is often dictated in meetings where headlines are chosen based on convenience, not relevance.

Investigative journalism survives in isolated efforts, but is systematically underfunded.

Newsrooms are filled with overworked, underpaid professionals, subjected to editorial pressures they cannot always resist.

The media should be the **watchdog of democracy**.

But too often, it acts like a **lapdog** — barking when told, silent when needed.

There is an excess of commentary, but a deficit of facts.

An abundance of opinion panels, but little investigation.

A flood of "news flashes," but no memory, no context, no depth.

Information becomes spectacle.

Indignation becomes performance.

And the citizen?

Reduced to a passive consumer, overwhelmed by conflicting versions of a fragmented truth.

This environment fuels conspiracy, cynicism, and polarization.

In this fog, the system thrives.

The absence of clarity becomes a strategic advantage.

And the people, deprived of tools to discern, grow ever more disoriented.

A Republic without a free, critical, and well-informed press is like a body without a nervous system:

It feels nothing, reacts to nothing, dies slowly.

To regain democracy, we must first regain the truth. And that begins by freeing the media — not with laws alone, but with **transparency, plurality, and courage**.

#### **Chapter 11 - The Vote of Fear, the Absence of Hope**

Politics should be an exercise in construction.

A gesture toward the future.

A space for imagination and civic power.

But in Portugal — and increasingly around the world — voting has become **a defensive act**.

A movement born not of hope, but of fear.

We vote not for someone, but against someone else.

We choose the "lesser evil."

We fear "what may come" and settle for "what already is."

This climate of fear is no accident.

It is cultivated.

It is fertilized with manipulation, polls, threats of instability, and the ghost of chaos.

Voters are bombarded with messages that say:

- "Don't waste your vote."
- "Only we can stop the extremists."
- "Better the devil you know."

Thus, change is discredited before it can even begin.

Dissent is neutralized by ridicule.

And any new path is portrayed as a danger.

Meanwhile, politics becomes stagnant.

New voices are suffocated.

Alternatives are seen as naive, risky, or childish.

This is not democracy.

It is an **emotional trap**.

The citizen is infantilized, guided not by conviction but by panic.

And politicians, far from inspiring, govern by fear:

Fear of the other.

Fear of the unknown.

Fear of losing privileges.

When fear takes the wheel, democracy loses direction.

And without hope, voting becomes a ritual — not an act of liberation.

To reclaim politics, we must first  ${f restore}$  the  ${f right}$  to  ${f dream}$ .

Because a people that no longer hopes is a people condemned to repeat. And a country that votes with fear will never be governed with courage.

#### **Chapter 12 - The Icelandic Dream**

In 2008, the world trembled under the weight of the financial collapse.

Banks failed.

States intervened.

Millions lost their homes, jobs, futures.

In most countries, the pattern was the same:

- Rescue the banks,
- Blame the people,
- Demand austerity.

But in Iceland... something different happened.

The people said **no**.

They protested.

They surrounded Parliament.

They demanded justice.

They refused to pay for crimes they hadn't committed.

And they succeeded.

Bankers were tried.

Corrupt politicians were removed.

A constituent assembly was formed — not with party representatives, but with **ordinary citizens**.

Teachers, farmers, doctors, students.

People like us.

People with no power — except the legitimacy of their collective will.

They sat together.

They debated.

They rewrote the Constitution.

It was not a perfect process.

There were obstacles, sabotage, internal resistance.

But the message echoed worldwide:

#### Another democracy is possible.

Not one dictated by parties or technocrats.

But one **born from the people**, with the people, for the people.

The Icelandic Dream is not about idealism. It is about courage.

It is proof that a small nation can choose a big path. That sovereignty is not a museum piece — it is a living force.

And if Iceland could — why not us?

Portugal does not lack wisdom.

Nor heart.

Nor history.

What we lack is the belief that we deserve better.

And the will to rise together.

#### **Chapter 13 - Refounding the Republic**

There comes a time in history when reform is no longer enough.

When patching the system no longer works.

When the wounds are so deep, and the rot so widespread, that only a **foundational act** can heal a nation.

Portugal has reached that time.

We live under a Republic that proclaims freedom, but offers stagnation.

That proclaims representation, but is ruled by party oligarchies.

That proclaims justice, but delivers privilege.

What we need is not cosmetic change — but **constitutional refoundation**.

Not just a new law.

Not just a reshuffling of the same cards.

But a **new social contract**, written by the people, with the people, for the people.

#### A Republic where:

- Citizens are not spectators, but co-authors;
- The State serves the common good, not partisan agendas;
- Justice is swift, transparent, and equal;
- Political power is accountable, limited, and renewable;
- The economy values dignity over speculation;
- Public resources are sacred, not spoils of war.

Refounding a Republic is not a utopian dream.

It is a democratic necessity when the old order no longer responds to collective needs.

Iceland showed us it can be done.

History reminds us that every true revolution began with words — then gatherings — then unity.

Portugal can do the same.

Not through violence.

Not through hatred.

But through the awakened will of a people who decide to reclaim their country.

A Constituent Assembly.

Chosen not by parties, but by the citizens themselves.

Open, participatory, transparent.

A democratic rebirth, not a mere reform.

To refound is to remember who we are.

And to choose, together, who we want to become.

#### **Chapter 14 - From Vote to Action**

Voting is a gesture.

Important. Symbolic. Necessary.

But insufficient.

Democracy does not live only in the ballot box.

It breathes — or suffocates — in what happens **after** the vote.

A citizen who votes but does not participate remains vulnerable to deception.

To manipulation.

To resignation.

The true act of citizenship begins after election night.

It continues in the street, the neighborhood, the workplace, the school, the square, the network.

#### To act is:

- To organize;
- To question;
- To demand;
- To propose;
- To resist.

It is knowing the laws.

Monitoring the budget.

Understanding how decisions are made.

And refusing to be reduced to applause or abstention.

The system is designed to discourage action.

It creates bureaucracy, delays, silences.

It convinces the citizen that they are too small, too isolated, too powerless.

But that is the great lie.

History was never made by those who waited.

It was built by those who **dared to act**, even when the odds seemed overwhelming.

Voting is a starting point.

But a democracy without civic action is like a body without movement: inert, paralyzed, subject to any force that drags it.

To change the country, we must go from the vote to the act. From the silence of frustration to the sound of construction.

Every voice counts. Every gesture teaches. Every small victory adds up.

The Republic is not a gift.

It is a task — and it belongs to those who accept it.

#### **Chapter 15 - Civic Movements: The Other Politics**

When parties betray, citizens reinvent.

When institutions close doors, streets open paths.

When politics becomes a market, civic life becomes resistance.

Civic movements are not mere protests.

They are acts of creation.

Spaces where society reorganizes itself outside the filters of party interests.

They emerge from indignation — but grow through cooperation.

They connect causes, neighborhoods, generations.

They do not ask for permission.

They act.

Some plant urban gardens.

Others protect rivers.

Some denounce corruption.

Others occupy abandoned schools to turn them into community centers.

They do what the State neglects.

They illuminate what the media ignores.

They build where parties have destroyed.

Civic movements are the lungs of democracy.

They bring oxygen to a system that would otherwise choke in its own formalities.

They remind us that politics is not only about voting — it is about **living together**.

They are not "anti-system."

They are the **response to a failed system**.

They are fragile, yes.

Often disorganized, spontaneous, vulnerable to co-option.

But they are also powerful — because they are authentic.

And nothing frightens power more than **organized authenticity**.

That is why civic movements are silenced, ridiculed, or absorbed.

Because they **threaten the monopoly** of the parties.

Because they remind us that the citizen is not a subordinate — but the sovereign.

#### Page 31 The Theatre of Political Parties

The future will not be party-based. It will be plural.

Local.

Connected.

Open.

Human.

Civic movements are the seed of that future.

#### **Chapter 16 - Direct Democracy and Technology**

We live in an era of hyperconnectivity.

Of instant communication, decentralized networks, collaborative tools.

And yet... we still govern ourselves with the logic of the 19th century.

Every four years, we delegate power to someone who will decide everything on our behalf — often without us knowing how, when, or why. It is as if the digital revolution had stopped at the gates of Parliament.

#### But technology can — and must — reinvent democracy.

We already vote for music contests, participate in crowdfunding, collaborate on open-source software, and sign petitions with a fingerprint. Why not apply the same logic to the way we make collective decisions?

Direct democracy is no longer a utopia.

With the right systems, transparency protocols, and digital literacy, we could:

- Vote on local budgets;
- Propose and approve laws by citizen initiative;
- Monitor public expenses in real time;
- Debate openly, with verified information and accessible platforms.

Technology allows **scale**.

It enables participation without bureaucracy.

It can reconnect the citizen with decision-making.

But the elites resist.

They fear losing control.

They fear unpredictability.

They fear the people.

And so, they delay.

They raise legal, technical, or "security" arguments.

But what they truly fear is **popular sovereignty made real and immediate**.

Of course, risks exist:

Manipulation, digital exclusion, polarization.

But they can be mitigated with education, regulation, and collective intelligence.

The question is not whether technology can serve democracy.

The question is whether we will allow democracy to evolve — or keep it trapped in rituals that exclude more than they empower.

It is time to take back the keys.

To use the tools we have not just to consume — but to **govern**.

Democracy is not only a legacy.

It is a **code** — and we can rewrite it.

#### **Epilogue - The Indomitable Seed**

Within every people, there is a seed that never dies.

It may be buried under decades of fear, silenced by propaganda, weakened by apathy, distorted by manipulation — but it remains there.

Latent.

Alive.

Ready.

It is the seed of dignity.

Of freedom.

Of a dream that refuses to fade.

No system, however cunning, no party, however entrenched, no elite, however powerful, can forever suppress the pulse of a people who remember who they are.

This book is not a conclusion.

It is a signal.

A whisper to those who still feel.

A map for those who still seek.

A call to those who, even in silence, never surrendered.

Portugal is more than its rulers.

It is more than its past.

It is more than its suffering.

Portugal is the sum of the voices that rise.

Of the hands that build.

Of the minds that refuse the mediocre and dream the impossible.

We do not need permission to be citizens.

We do not need applause to be right.

We do not need to wait for salvation —

because we are the change we await.

The Republic can be reborn.

Not in palaces, but in hearts.

Not in speeches, but in actions. Not in decrees, but in courage.

Let the seed grow.

Let it break the asphalt.

Let it speak — again, and again — until no silence can contain it.

Let it be, at last,

the voice of the people.

What if democracy had lost its soul?

In this bold and lyrical essay, Francisco Gonçalves lifts the curtain on a political system that rewards parties over people, and silence over participation.

*Fragments of Chaos* is a call to awaken — to reject the theatre of power, rediscover civic courage, and reclaim the future of a forgotten Republic.

Because silence is no longer an option.